MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARINGS and REGULAR MEETING
December 13, 2016
MONTGOMERY CITY COUNCIL

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Kirk Jones declared a quorum was present, and called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m.

Present: Kirk Jones Mayor
Jon Bickford City Council Place # 1
John Champagne, Jr. City Council Place # 2
T.J. Wilkerson City Council Place # 3
Rebecca Huss City Council Place 4
Dave McCorquodale City Council Place # 5
Absent:
Also Present: Jack Yates City Administrator
Larry Foerster City Attorney
Nelson Cox Chairman, Capital Improvement Advisory Committee
Jennifer Brown Secretary, Capital Improvement Advisory Committee
Jetirey Waddell Member, Capital Improvement Advisory Committee
INVOCATION

T.J. Wilkerson gave the invocation.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO FLAGS

PUBLIC HEARING:

Convene into Public Hearing:

Mayor Jones convened into the Public Hearing at 6:04 p.m. Mayor Jones asked Nelson Cox,
Chairman of the Montgomery Capital Improvements Advisory Committee to call his meeting to

order, so that they can conduct simultaneous Public Hearings,




Chairman Cox called their meeting to order at 6:04 p.m., and noted that they had three members, a

quorum, present, which included Jeffrey Waddell and Jennifer Brown.

L.

Receive report from the Montgomery Capital Improvements Advisory Committee

regarding Impact Fees; and

Nelson Cox, Chairman of the Capital Improvement Advisory Committee stated that the

Committee had reviewed the report and information, and they were recommending the

Impact Fee,

Regarding adoption of Impact Fees for Water and Wastewater for the City of

Montgomery, Texas. The amount of the proposed impact fee per service unit is

$4.045.00,

Mr. Glynn Fleming, City Engineer, stated that this was the culmination of the process
that City Council had asked them to undertake approximately 6-8 months ago. Mr.
Fleming said that as they look at the City of Montgomery, they know that there is a lot
of commercial and residential growth that they are starting to see around town. Mr.
Fleming said that there are some shortcomings and needs in the water and wastewater
systems 1n order to be able to serve those developments. Mr. Fleming said that the idea
behind the impact fee is that it is a way to shift the financial burden of providing that
mfrastructure, to the actual new growth that it will serve, as opposed to trying to place

that burden on existing customers and/or existing residents of the City.

Mr. Fleming said that going back two years ago when they first came on as the City
Engineer, they took a long look at the current status of the City’s water and wastewater
intrastructure. They identified a lengthy list of items that needed to be done, which
totaled $25-$30 million dollars” worth of work, to be implemented over the next 10-15
years. Mr. Fleming said that some of that work needs to be done strictly to serve the new
growth, and some of the work is for both new and existing customers. Mr. Fleming said
that the Impact Fee Study takes a look at all of those projects and divvies up what needs

to be done to serve the new customers.

12/13/16 Councii Meeting Minutes - Page 2



Mr, Fleming said that the City Council appointed a Capital Improvement Advisory
Commuttee that is made up of existing residents and business people from the City. The
Committee listened to what they had to say about this information and went through each
of the projects individually to make recommendations to City Council about the proposed

impact fee.

Mr, Fleming advised that one month ago there was a Public Hearing to discuss Land Use
Assumptions and to seftle on Capital Projects and Plan that the Impact Fees are predicated

upon. Mr. Fleming said that tonight they would consider adoption of the actual impact

fee,

Mayor Jones asked if a service unit described is the equivalent of a 5/8’s inch water
meter. Mr. Fleming said that the Texas Local Government Code mandates how they go
about the process, with specific guidelines and terms for the process. Mr. Fleming said
that one of the terms that comes up a lot is a “service unit.” Mr. Fleming said that in
terms of this process a “service unit” amounts to one residential water meter, which the
City’s standard residential water meter is a 5/8 inch meter. Mayor Jones asked if they
would also take wastewater into consideration. . Mzr. Fleming said that was correct, and it

was broken out to show the assessments for just water or just wastewater projects.

Jon Bickford asked if that fee would apply to any permits. Mr. Fleming said that if the
City did elect to adopt the impact fees tonight, there would be a 12-month moratorium.
Rebecca Huss said that until that time, the City’s current fee structure would be what is
in place. Mr. Fleming said that the fee structure would remain the same. Mr, Fleming
said that it was important to remember that if the impact fee goes into effect, it would
only be for new growth that would come in next year and beyond within the City. Mr.
Fleming said that it would include new areas in the City and ET)’s. There are some areas
in the City that will be excluded from impact fees based on prior development

agreements,

Mr. Yates asked how it would work if someone wanted to purchase taps prior to the end

of the 12-month period. Mr. Foerster said that the fee would not be effective until

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 3



December 13, 2017, and by law they can’t place a moratorium on them and refuse serving
them because they want them to pay the impact fee. Mr. Fleming said that was built into
the Government Code, where they will not aliow the City to hold off until the time period

it up.

Mr. Fleming stated that the tap fee and impact'fee were two separate 1ssues. So if they
were both 1n place, they would both be assessed. Mr. Fleming said that the tap fee is a
way for the City to cover the costs for public works to physically go out and make the
tap connection fo the City’s water and wastewater system. The tap fee is just to cover
the actual costs, so that fee will remain in place. The impact fee is an additional

assessment and is strictly to fund infrastructure needed for the new growth.

Rebecca Huss said that another thing that came up at the meetings and for the record, this
isn’t exactly a revenue bonanza that releases City Council from finding funds to do all
the mfrastructure that 1s necessary. Rebecca Huss stated that the funds identified are not
100 percent recoverable, so there is a shortfall of $5-$10 million dollars just on that
amount, and then the recoverable amount 1tself is reduced by 50 percent due to state law,
unless they want to hire ten accountants to figure out the precise one. Rebecca Huss said
that the impact fee 1s necessary and tries to shift the burden to the people that are requiring
the new service, but if does not fix the looming amount of money that they need to come

~ up with to fund the projects.

Mr. Fleming said that it is important to say that when they first started talking about some
of the problems facing the City, the first place that this City Council looked at, to start
addressing that matter, was internally. Mr. Fleming said that they looked at operational
efficiency across the board. Mr. Fleming said that in the last two years the City has done
a tremendous amount of buttoning up their operations, They looked at water and sewer
rates, so they have taken some steps to address their shortcomings in the water and sewer
rates to help address some of the existing shortcomings for the people that are already
nere. Mr. Fleming said that in terms of getting their own accountability up, to make sure
that they are not losing water and potential l*eveﬁue, they have installed a brand new, state

of the art, automated metering system. Mt. Fleming said that with the new system they

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 4




should not be losing water. Mr. Fleming said that the City looked internally to correct all

1ssues and inefficiencies.

Reconvene into Regular Session:

Mayor Jones adjourned the Public Hearing at 6:16 p.m. and reconvened into Regular Session,

Chairman Cox then closed the Capital Improvement Advisory Committee Public Hearing at 6:16

p.m.

VISITOR/CITIZENS FORUM:

Any citizen with business not scheduled on the agenda may speak to the City Council, Prior to

speaking, each speaker must be recognized by the Mayor, Council may not discuss or take any action

on an ifem, but may place the issue on a future agenda. The number of speakers along with the time

allowed per speaker may be limited.

Ms. Shirley Schneider spoke about the Christmas in Montgomery that took place last Saturday, and

said that it was bigger than ever. Ms. Schneider satd that she wanted to thank all of the City Council

for all that they do throughout the year to make all the citizens happy. Ms. Schneider then thanked
the Police Chief and all the officer’s for their help during the Christmas Parade and at the funeral
home during the year. Ms. Schneider thanked City staff for their help during the season to get the

Community Center, Ms. Schneider said that the City has an excellent employee named Kimberly

Duckett, who went above and beyond to help her. Ms. Schneider said that the City has wonderful

™.

staff. Ms. Schneider thanked the City for the new Christmas trees and additional decorations that

really added to the festivities and they received a lot of nice compliments. Ms. Schneider said that

people are already asking about next year,

Ms. Schneider said that she would like consideration to create more tourism in Montgomery, because
we are missing a lot of opportunities. The City needs a consulting person to come in and see what
Montgomery can do, This person should have good people communication skills, a lot of marketing

experience and a vast knowledge of tourism. Ms. Schneider wished the City a Merry Christmas.

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 5



CONSENT AGENDA;

3, Matters related to the approval of minutes for the Public Hearings and Regular Meeting held
on October 25, 2016, and Regular Meeting held on November 15, 2016.

4, Consideration and possible action regarding Cedar Crest Manufactured Home Park License
Renewal.
5. Consideration and possible action to regarding rescheduling a Public Hearing for a Special Use

Permit for Mary Eckhart Sims to open a Bed and Breakfast operation at 811 Caroline Street,

Montgomery, originally scheduled to be held on December 13, 2016, to be held on January 10.
2017 at 6:00 p.m.

Rebecca Huss commented that she would like to see the visitor comments section of the

minutes abbreviated. Rebecca Huss said that the last two minutes were probably 12-15 pages

regarding comments, Rebecca Huss said that getting to the point would serve everyone well.

City Council concurred with summarizing the comments in the minutes,

Dave McCorquodale moved to approve the items on the consent agenda as presented. Jon

Bicktord seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:

6. Consideration and possible action on Department Reports,

A.  Administrator’s Report — Mr. Yates presented his report to City Council. Mr. Yates

said that the one thing that he wanted to highlight was working with the Grantworks
people and Mr. Fleming on Baja Street. Mr. Yates said that they also held a
neighborhood meeting of the north side residents to discuss the CDBG project, home

project possibilities and police visibility in the area. Mr, Yates said that the meeting

was well attended.

Jon Bickford asked for an update on the Kroger Store opening. Mr. Yates said that he
has had two different answers, but he would see what he could do to get that
information. Mr. Fleming said that he meets with the Kroger people weekly and right

now they are saying early to mid-April.

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 6




Public Works Report — Mr. Mike Muckleroy presented his report to City Council. Mr.

Muckleroy advised that they had repaired a main line lead at 524 Simonton Street, Mr,

Muckleroy said the numbers for Fernland were 861 visitors and 41 tours,

Rebecca Huss said that she noticed that the west side of Flagship Boulevard the striping
had been done to provide a turn lane to the right, and left going west bound. Rebecca
Huss said that it works, and said that it was a job well done. Mr. Muckleroy said that
striping had actually been done a couple of months ago. Mr. Muckleroy said that once

the work was completed, he thought that they could expand the turn lane a little longer,

John Champagne asked about the culvert at the end of Baja and whether it had
collapsed. Mr. Muckleroy advised that when Montgomery County did the project two
years ago, they removed a crossover culvert and tried to make 100% percent of the
water flow to MLK on each side. Mr. Harris’ house at the end of Baja was still holding
quite a bit of water, so they put a culvert back across there so that it would carry some

of the water across, which seems to have worked.

Mayor Jones asked about the concrete work on Flagship Boulevard and whether they

were waiting for the funds from FEMA. Mr. Yates said that was correct. Mr.

Muckleroy said that they would coordinate that work when there was at least a couple
of weeks of no school, so they do not have the traffic congestion. John Champagne
asked if the holidays would be a good time to do the work., Mr. Muckleroy said it
would if they had the FEMA funds. John Champagne asked how much money they
were talking about receiving from FEMA. Mr. Yates said it was going to be $50,000
to $60,000 dollars. Mr. Muckleroy said that there was more work involved, because

they are talking about removing the median during the same project.

John Champagne asked whether it would impede the removal of the median by just

paving the area that needs to be paved. Mr, Fleming said that the idea was to avoid the

appearance of piece meal fashion that has been addressed over the years, so when the
FEMA funding comes through they would like to remove the paving in its entirety and
replace it back in its entirety. Mr. Fleming said the next time that school will be out

will be the end of the spring semester,

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 7




Police Department Report — Chief Napolitano presented his report to City Council.

Chief Napolitano said that they had hired a new police officer, James Riley, who came

from Panorama, and he has 9 1/2 years of experience in law enforcement, and should
be on the streets next week. Chief Napolitano said that he would bring Officer Riley
in next month to introduce him to City Council. Chief Napolitano said that he wanted
to thank Ms. Schneider for all her cooperation on the parade, because the parade would
not get done without her efforts. Chief Napolitano also commented on Mr. Yates great
meeting with the residents on the north side, which he attended, and said that they will

work on some things to hopefully help them out.

Court Department Report — Court Administrator Becky Lehn presented her report to
City Council. Ms. Lehn said that warrant collection is at the highest it has ever been
during the month of November, Ms. Lehn said that the revenue collection is also at its
highest that she has seen in the last five years. Ms. Lehn also commented to Ms.
Schneider that she appreciated the wonderful complements about Mrs. Kimberly

Duckett, and said that she just received an award for customer service,

Utility/Development Report — Mrs. Ashley Slaughter, Utility Billing Clerk, presented

her report to City Council. Mrs, Slaughter said that there were 11 new water accounts
for the month that bring their total accounts to 561, There was one new residential
home and three new commercial building permits issued during the month. Jon

Bickford asked where the new commercial businesses were located. Mrs. Slaughter

said that one was for Heritage Plaza.

Water Report — Mr, Mike Williams, Gulf Ultilities, presented his report to City Council.

Mr, Williams said that they had very few district alerts during the month.

Mayor Jones asked about grease clogs in the lift stations. Mr. Williams advised that
Lift Station 3 had the pump clogged with debris, typically it is rags that are flushed into
the system. Jon Bickford said that the report stated that they conducted top cleanings
at lift stations showing grease build up in excess of 50 percent within the City. Mr.
Williams said that the grease that gets washed down into the system starts building up

and once you get to 50 percent you need to clean it out so that you do run the risk of

12/13/16 Councit Meeting Minutes - Page 8



equipment not operating properly. Mayor Jones asked if they had to call someone in

to clean that out of the system. Mr, Williams advised that was correct,

Mayor Jones asked if there was a way to have the grease pass through and be collected
at the wastewater treatment plant. Mr. Williams said that you can’t really keep the
grease from floating up to the top of the water, and it can occur at any of the lift stations
because it depends on what people are flushing down the system. Mayor Jones asked
if the lift stations were only cleaned as needed. Mr, Williams said that on their routine
maintenance program they clean the lift stations semiannually, and as needed. Rebecca
Huss asked, for efficiency sake, if they cleaned Lift Station 3 would they clean the
other ones at the same time. Mr, Williams said that they would not have a vacuum
truck come out for just one hift station, they would get a survey of all the ones that need

to be done so they can {ry to get as many done in one trip.

Mr, Williams said that last month they had reported that they were trying to get a

temporary totalizer installed at the wastewater treatment plant to verify the flow of the
current totalizer. Mr. Williams said that a couple days after the meeting during the
weekend the temperature sensing module went out, so they flat lined the flow at the
sewer plant. Mr. Williams said that they were able to get a new unit for $3,485. Mr.
Williams said that when they looked at the old totalizer, in order to get it up and running
it would have required numerous upgrades due to the age of the unit, which would have
cost $3,400. Mr. Williams said that the existing totalizer was a unit that had a bunch
of different parts on it, but now they have a new unit that is very accurate. Mr. Williams
adviséd that since they have changed out the totalizer, they have seen a moderate
increase in the flow and they are looking at 130,000 gallons, which is approximately a

30% percent return.

Rebecca Huss asked if the City was in any risk of violation during the time the totalizer

was down. Mr. Williams said that they had done everything within TCEQ standards
and they have recorded everything daily, but he would check into the information

further to make sure that they were not in any violation with TCEQ.

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 9



Mr, Williams said that there were no excursions during the month and they were at
95% percent accountability. Mr. Williams said that they were still running Well No. 3
because of the shortage of the permit for Well No. 4, through the end of the calendar

year.

Mayor Jones asked about the status of the water reuse for the chlorination project. Mr.
Williams advised that last week the contractor came in and installed the skimmer basket
in the contact basin. Mr, Williams said that he also had the bottom of the contact basin
cleaned out at the same time that they had the lift stations cleaned. Mr. Williams said

that he thought that they were on track to have the project done by the end of the year.

John Champagne said that he remembered Mr. Williams stating that the chlorine levels
were checked daily. Mr, Williams said that was correct. John Champagne asked about
the City’s water system range levels and whether they were in the middle, high or low

side. Mr. Williams said that he would have to go back and look to find out exactly, but

the acceptable chlorine levels for groundwater levels are between .2 and 4.0, Mr,
Williams said that the City has been within the acceptable range because they monitor
that closely, Mayor Jones asked if the operating data was tighter than that, Mr,
Williams advised that it was tighter than that and said that he has advised the operators
that he wants to see a 2.0 at the water plant. Mr. Williams said that lowest reading he
has seen was a .79 for the far reaches. Mr. Williams said that the reading will drop
off, which is when you will start smelling the chlorine smell. Mr. Williams said that
what you are smelling is not actually the chlorine in the water, but the chlorine spent

that is out of the water and turns into gas.

Engineer’s Report — Mr, Fleming presented his report to City Council., Mr, Fleming

said that he had a couple updates on the public infrastructure projects. Mr. Fleming
said that Kroger has been on site and making good progress on the water and
wastewater construction coming down Gardner Drive, and they are beginning to do

some work on SH 105,

Mr. Fleming said that the other grant funded project to serve Pizza Shack, will advertise

for bids this Thursday, and come back to Council at the first meeting in January with

12/13/16 Councit Meeting Minutes - Page 10



the bid tabulation and recommendation for award of the bid. Mr. Fleming said that site
construction for Pizza Shack is currently underway, and the other retail center around
the corner broke ground last week., Mr. Fleming advised that the retail center would

be a 1,800 square foot commercial shell building.

Mr. Fleming said that regarding the bridge, the FEMA package submission will be
submitted before the end of the year. Mr. Fleming stated that they have plans to meet
with the upstream property owner, Mr. LeFevre, to discuss action on his property on

Monday, December 19, 2016.

Mr, Fleming said the City’s wastewater permit renewals have been submitted, with the

review time running approximately 4-6 months. Mr. Fleming advised that the Water

Development Board fund applications continue to be reviewed and he hopes to hear

from them sometime after the first of the year.

H.  Financial Report — Mr. Yates presented the summary report, in the absence of Mrs.

Cathy Branco, financial consultant, to City Council, Mr. Yates advised that he thought
the City was doing fine because the only large expenditure that has been made so far
this year is the Public Works truck. Mr. Yates said that sales tax was down last month,
but was up this month about $30,000 dollars. Mr. Yates said that last month the State
took back $58,000 due to an overpayment. Mr. Yates said that the utility fund was also

doing well.

Rebecca Huss moved to accept the Departmental Reports as presented. Dave McCorquodale

seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY. TEXAS.
AMENDING ARTICLE 1II, "IMPACT FEES" OF CHAPTER 90 "UTILITIES" OF THE
CITY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY ADOPTING NEW IMPACT FEES FOR WATER AND
WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS THAT ARE  ATTRIBUTABLE TO NEW
DEVELOPMENT IN THE CITY'S PROPOSED WATER AND WASTEWATER IMPACT
rEE SERVICE AREA WITHIN THE CORPORATE BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY:
PROVIDING FOR IMPACT FEE COLLECTION AND ACCOUNTING FOR FEES AND

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 11



INTEREST: PROVIDING FOR IMPACT FEE WAIVERS: PROVIDING FOR SEMI-
ANNUAL REVIEW OF IMPACT FEES BY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT ADVISORY
COMMITTEER: REPEALING CITY ORDINANCE NO, 2013-08 AND ALL ORDINANCES
IN CONFLICT:; PROVIDING A TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT CLAUSE; PROVIDING
A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE:; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE AFTER
PUBLICATION.

John Champagne moved to approve the Ordinance as presented, Jon Bickford seconded the

motion.

Discussion: Mayor Jones asked about when the impact fees are collected, and asked if they

would go into a separate fund and must be spent on specific things. Mr, Foerster said that was

correct.

Mr. Foerster stated, for the benefit of the public, this ordinance repeals and replaces an impact
fee ordinance that City Council passed in 2013, which was only for the northwest quadrant of
the City. Mr. Foerster said that he did not know if the City had really ever implemented that
impact fee program, but this will be City wide. Mr. Foerster said that there will need to be a
semiannual review by the Capital Improvements Advisory Committee, and then within at least
five. years from now they will need to revisit the entire analysis of the impact fees. Mayor
Jones said that the other impact fee ordinance just never had anybody build in the zone so they

never got to use it. Dave McCorquodale asked whether it was on the outside of the loop, in

reference to the development that is going on out there on the interior side of the Lone Star
Parkway, Dave McCorquodale asked if they would fall under the existing impact fee
ordinance. Mayor Jones said that development might very well fall under the existing
ordinance. Dave McCorquodale said that for some reason he did not feel like it could go on
the outside of the loop there at SH 105, but he thought that it was on the inside. Dave
McCorquodale said that it would come down to whether or not that property was annexed into

the City and where the City limits fell. Mayor Jones said that they are in the City, Dave

McCorquodale said that it may be worth looking at that ordinance, with reference to them to
make sure that they were the only ones that built out there and were they subject to that impact

fee. Dave McCorquodale said that he did not know what process they did to get the taps.

Mayor Jones asked if staff understood what Dave McCorquodale was talking about. Mr,

Fleming said that he did understand and he had a couple of thoughts there. Mr. Fleming said

that, if memory served him correctly, the area identified was actually north of there, and was

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 12




intended to address more potential industrial development period. Rebecca Huss said if anyone
in the next twelve months applies for a tap pays under our current fee schedule, if they fall
under the previous impact fee zone, would they pay under that, as opposed to not having to pay
anything. Rebecca Huss said that everyone would be under the current laws that they are under,
and if they pass this ordinance, it would repeal those rules, Mr. Foerster asked to clarify,
because that brings up a point that he had not thought of as they drafted the ordinance. Mr.
Foerster said that he was led to believe that there was no activity in the northwest quadrant of
the City, and he did not contemplate the fact that there might be some in the next twelve (12)
months. Mr. Foerster said that the ordinance, as it is written, effectively repeals the 2013
ordinance for mmpact fees, and to address that tonight they could make an amendment to the
ordinance, modifying it, to make the repealing effective in twelve (12) months from the date

of adoption. Mr. Foerster said that would need to be reflected in the minutes, and the change

could easily be made so that it there was development in the northwest quadrant of the City,

the City could still impose an impact fee for that quadrant for the next twelve (12) months.

Mr. Foerster said that he would suggest that, for the record, would be to entertain a motion to
amend the ordinance, which was just passed, with respect to Section 9 of that ordinance, so
that City Ordinance No. 2013-08 dated May 28, 2013, be repealed effective twelve (12) months
from the date of this ordinance. Mayor Jones asked to confirm whether John Champagne

wanted to amend his motion. John Champagne stated that he wanted to amend his motion,

John Champagne moved to amend his motion, as previously stated by the City Attorney, “to
amend the ordinance, which was just passed, with respect to Section 9 of that ordinance, so
that City Ordinance No. 2013-08 dated May 28, 2013, be repealed effective twelve (12) months
from the date of this ordinance.” Jon Bickford amended his second. John Champagne asked
the City Secretary to read the motion back. The City Secretary read the motion back. Mr.
Foerster advised that he would make the changé to the ordinance and send it to the City

Secretary tomorrow, Jon Bickford said that was a good catch by Dave McCorquodale.

The motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AND ENACTING A NEW CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR
THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CERTAIN
ORDINANCES NOT INCLUDED THEREIN: PROVIDING A PENALTY FOR THE
VIOLATION THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR THE MANNER OF AMENDING SUCH

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 13




CODE; PROVIDING A TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT CLAUSE: AND PROVIDING
SUCH CODE AND THIS ORDINANCE SHALL, BECOME EFFECTIVE UPON
PUBLICATION AS PROVIDED BY LAW,

Mr. Yates advised that this was the formal adoption of the City Code of Ordinances. Mr. Yates
advised that the City Attorney had prepared and approved the ordinance. Mr. Yates said that

the penalty language that is included in the ordinance is tracking Vernon’s Civil Statutes
54.001, which needs to be spectiically listed in the ordinance, The City Attorney asked if the
Code Book had been received, The City Secretary advised that it had been received by the
City. Mr. Foerster said that the penalties are recognized according to what the violation might
be, and Mr. Carroll, Attorney with Municode recommended that penalty language be

incorporated in the ordinance.

Rebecca Huss moved to adopt the Ordinance as presented, and include the penalty language

from VTCA Local Government Code 54.001. T.J, Wilkerson seconded the motion.

Discussion: Mayor Jones satd that he just wanted to say again, even though he mentioned it
last time, but City staff did a great job on this and it has been a long time coming. Mayor Jones

said special thanks to Susan Hensley, City Secretary.

The motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding funding of East SH 105 water/sewer extension,

Mr, Yates said that this was a request from the Montgomery EDC (*MEDC”), for City Council
to agree to their decision to use $195,000 from the MEDC funds to fund the project for the
water and sewer lines from SH 105 and Lone Star Parkway, down to Pizza Shack, if Pizza

Shack were not able to meet their grant requirements. Mr. Yates said that it appears that Pizza

Shack is making considerable progress and this won’t be necessary, but in case it is necessary,
the MEDC asked for approval for them to spend their funds to fund the entirety of the project,

if necessary.

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 14




10.

1.

Rebecca Huss asked if it was clear that this would be subject to pro rata reimbursement as
people buy on to the line. Mr. Yates said that was correct. Rebecca Huss said that MEDC
would get its money back if they have to spend the money. Mayor Jones said that was the way

that MEDC understood 1t. Mr. Yates said that was correct.

Jon Bickford moved to approve MEDC funding of east SH 105 water/sewer extension, as

presented. Dave McCorquodale seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

Dave McCorquodale stepped out of the meeting at 7:02 p.m.

Consideration _and possible action regarding City Sponsorship Letter for Heritage Place

Medical Center, Houston Street driveway permit,

Mr. Yates said that the applicant was not able to be at the meeting and has requested that this

item be postponed until the January 10, 2017 meeting,

John Champagne moved to table this item. Jon Bickford seconded the motion, the motion

carried unanimously. (4-0)

Dave McCorquodale returned to the meeting at 7:06 p.m,

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Resolution:
RESOQLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS,

CALLING UPONTHE TEXAS LEGISLATURE TO AMEND THE GOVERNING LAW OF
THE LONE STAR GROUNDWATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT TO PROVIDE FOR
THE DIRECT ELECTION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE LONE STAR GROQUNDWATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT.

Mr. Yates advised that this resolution is being requested by the City of Conroe. Mr. Yates
included a copy of the Conroe resolution, which he felt made allegations that he did not think

the City of Montgomery was ready to make, so he included a second resolution that had that

language removed.

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 15




2,

Rebecca Huss said that she would like to offer a third option, to table this item, because she

did not feel that direct elections would solve any of the problems that they are stating, John

Champagne stated that he was getting to the same mind set. Mr. Yates said that the third option
would be to do nothing. Mayor Jones said that one of the board members believes that it should

be an election. Rebecca Huss said that she would rather have the governing bodies elect the

representative,

After discussion, Rebecca Huss moved to take no action on this item. John Champagne

seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. {5-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding voting tor City Representative to the Lone Star

Groundwater Conservation District,

Mr. Yates said that this was a 4-year term on the board. Mr. Yates said that the present
representative, who is completing his 8" year, as thé City’s representative, is Scott Weisinger.
Mr. Yates advised that the only other person who has presented themselves is Greg Smith, City
Administrator for the City of Shenandoah. Mr. Yates said that he and the Mayor had spoken

to Mr. Weisinger, and he assured them that he would be getting back to Council Meetings in

the future, 1f requested, because not hearing from Mr, Weisinger was one of Mr. Yates issues.
John Champagne confirmed that there were two options, Greg Smith and Scott Weisinger. Mr,
Foerster advised that the City of Shenandoah has a Joint GRP with the City of Panorama
Village. Jon Bickford asked where Panorama gets their water, Mr., Foerster advised they have

a Catahoula Water Well.

After discussion, Jon Bickford moved to nominate Greg Smith as our candidate, John

Champagne seconded the motion.

Discussion: Mayor Jones said that before they vote on this matter, he has a very strong feeling

in the other direction. Mayor Jones said that he knew he did not get a vote, but on the other
hand, the Mayor is appointed to select this candidate, but he brought it to City Council to try
and convince them otherwise. Mayor Jones said that Scott Weisinger has been on there a long

time, and he is one of three members that buck the rest of the committee. Mayor Jones said

that Scott Weisinger has enormous experience in water, and his whole business is water wells,

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 16




i3,

Mayor Jones said that Greg Smith knows water to the extent of a City Administrator, but it is

not his life. Mayor Jones said that he thinks that Scott’s continued representation would be a

better choice. Jon Bickford asked if in the last 8-10 years whether they have seen anything
good come out of the Lone Star Conservation District. Mayor Jones said not much, because it
is usually a 6-3 vote. Rebecca Huss said that Mr. Yates notes said that Weisinger has been the

“3” on a lot of those votes. Mayor Jones said that was a good thing,

Mr, Foerster said that Scott Weisinger contacts him on a somewhat regular basis about issues

that are coming up with the Lone Star Groundwater Conservation District Board, and when it

is appropriate, he forwards them to the City Administrators of his cities, Mr. Foerster said that
Scott Weisinger has been keeping him apprised of some of the issues. Mr. Foerster said that

there i1s some controversy there, which they know that, and Scott is sensitive on the City’s

needs and brings them to the attention of the appropriate people, which has been his experience.

Rebecca Huss said that she would be comfortable reappointing Scott Weisinger, personally.

Jon Bickford rescinded his motion,

Rebecca Huss moved to support the reappoint of Scott Weisinger as the City representative,

Dave McCorquodale seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding approval of designating an engineering service

provider for the 2017 Texas Water Development Board Safe Drinking and Clean Water

Revolving Loan Fund application and project related engineering services.

Mr. Yates advised that this selection process is required by the TWDB as part of their loan
approval process. Mr. Yates said that the recommendation is the result of a City Council
appointed Committee consisting of Rebecca Huss, TJ Wilkerson, Susan Hensley and himself,

soliciting RIFP’s and interviewing prospective engineers.
The Committee interviewed two firms, Jones and Carter and AEI of Houston. Mr. Yates said

that the Committee is recommending Jones and Carter because of their experience with the

City in general, and specifically the current TWDB application process.

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 17



14,

15,

Rebecca Huss moved to select lones and Carter as the engineer for the 2017 Texas Water

Development Board Safe Drinking and Clean Water Revolving Loan Fund application and

project related engineering services. John Champagne seconded the motion, the motion carried

unanimously, (5-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding approval of designating a Financial Advisor

service provider for the 2017 Texas Water Development Board Sale Drinking and Clean Water

Revolving Loan Fund application and project related Financial Advisor services.

Mr. Yates advised that this is also the same selection process by the same Committee listed

under the previous item. Mr, Yates said that two submittals were received from U.S. Capital

Advisors and PFM of Houston.

Mi. Yates said that the Committee thought very well of PFM as an alternative to using Jim
Gilley. Ultimately, the Committee came to the recommendation of U.S, Capital Advisors as
the Financial Advisor based on their work on the application for TWDB funding and their

experience with the City in general, and specifically on the current applications.

John Champagne moved to select U.S, Capital Advisors as the Financial Advisor service
provider for the 2017 Texas Water Development Board Safe Drinking and Clean Water
Revolving Loan Fund application and project related Financial Advisor services. Dave

McCorquodale seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. {5-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding approval of designating a Bond Counsel provider

for the 2017 Texas Water Development Board Safe Drinking and Clean Water Revolving Loan

Fund application and project related Bond Counsel services.

Mr. Yates advised that the same process was followed for this item as the two previous items,
Mr. Yates said that the two firms that were interviewed were Sechrist and Duckers and

Bracewell Company.

Mr. Yates advised that Sechrist and Duckers is a small firm, consisting of two attorneys, which

have accomplished many borrowings, some with TWDB.

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 18



16.

The Bracewell Company is represented by Jonathan Fries, who has performed the role of bond

counsel on the last several borrowings by the City and has familiarity with the City’s legal

posttion, and worked on the application for TWDB funding.
M, Yates said that because of Bracewell’s experience with the City in general and specifically
in the current TWDB application process, the Committee recommends selecting Bracewell

Company as Bond Counsel.

Jon Bickford moved to approve selection of Bracewell Company as the Bond Counsel provider

for the 2017 Texas Water Development Board Safe Drinking and Clean Water Revolving Loan
Fund application and project related Bond Counsel services. Dave McCorquodale seconded

the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding approval appointment of four (4) Directors on the

Montgomery Economic Development Corporation Board, whose 2-year term expires January

2017, currently served by: Kirk Jones, Randy Moravec, Bob Kerr and Andy Dill.

Mr. Yates advise that the Board consists of seven (7) members for two-year staggered terms.

At least three directors shall be persons who are not employees or member of the governing

body, and two members of the Board shall be members of City Council. Mr, Yates said that
all the directors shall be residents of the County, with the majority of the Board being residents

of the City,

Rebecca Huss said that her personal feeling is that if they have applicants who are residents of
the City of Montgomery, they should consider them, because there are three non-residents,
Rebecca Huss said that she knows Amy Brown, applicant, personally. Rebecca Huss said that
Amy Brown 1s a business woman that took an internet business and turned it into a brick and

mortar business, she is in the City and is not affiliated with either HMBA or the Chamber of

Commerce. Rebecca Huss said that Amy Brown has not obtained funds from MEDC in the
past, but she does have a lot of creative ideas and she would like to see more residents of the

City deciding how the MEDC funds are best spent for the City.

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 19




John Champagne said that he would agree with Rebecca Huss, but he would just say from his

experience, the new members, and Bob Kerr being a resident, Kirk Jones has been forever.,

John Champagne said that Randy Moravec is doing a lot of additional financial support and

direction for the Corporation. John Champagne said that these guys are really good.

Rebecca Huss said that she agreed with those three, but she thought of maybe swapping Amy
Brown for Andy Dill might be something that would accomplish the goal of City residents

determining how the money is spent without harming the good work that Randy Moravec has

done on the financial and organizational things.

Mayor Jones said that they will treat this item like an election, Mayor Jones said that they wil|

nominate people for positions, which they will number 1-4.

Nominations:

Position 1:

Rebecca Huss nominated Amy Brown for Position 1.
No other nominations were submitted.

City Council, by a vote of acclamation, elected Amy Brown to the MEDC Board of

Directors.

Position 2:

Jon Bickford nominated Kirk Jones for Position 2.
No other nominations were submitted.

City Council, by a vote of acclamation, elected Kirk Jones to the MEDC Board of

Directors.

Position 3!

Jon Bickford nominated Bob Kerr for Position 3.
No other nominations were submitted.
City Council, by a vote of acclamation, elected Bob Kerr to the MEDC Board of

Directors.

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 20



17,

Position 4:

Rebecca Huss nominated Randy Moravec for Position 4,

No other nominations were submitted.

City Council, by a vote of acclamation, elected Randy Moravec to the MEDC Board

of Directors,

Mayor Jones stated for the record that the MEDC Board Members that will fill out the next

term are: Amy Brown, Kirk Jones, Bob Kerr and Randy Moravec.

Consider and take action on a resolution that authorizes submission of an application to the

Texas Department of Agriculture for a 2017-18 Texas Community Development Block Grant

Program — Community Development Fund grant of up to $350,000 to construct water, sewer,

street, and drainage system improvements in Baja Street target area and designates the City

Administrator as the City’s authorized signatory,

Mr. Yates said that this was a resolution needed to apply for the CDBG grant in the amount of
$350,000, and it also offers $17,500 as match money, which is not a requirement, but does get
extra points. Mr. Yates said that the funds needed for Baja Street will be first, which they
believe will be roughly $200,000, and the additional funds will be used either for drainage
improvements at the corner of MLK and Community Center Drive, or for waterline extending
down MLK and adding some fire hydrants, depending on how they work out the points on the
application, Mr. Yates said that the preference is to help the drainage at that intersection, but
you don’t get very many points for drainage. Mr. Yates said that the majority of the grant will

be water and sewer, and they might be able to squeeze in some drainage.

Rebecca Huss asked if the match money being only $17,500 and the rest of it being FEMA,

was that something that Grantworks came up with, Mr. Yates said that was correct.

Mr. Yates stated that due to an illness in the family, Mrs. Martha Drake with Grantworks, is

not here tonight,

Jon Bickford moved to adopt the Resolution that authorizes submission of an application to the

Texas Department of Agriculture for a 2017-18 Texas Community Development Block Grant

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 21



1 8.

Program — Community Development Fund grant of up to $350,000 to construct water, sewer,
street, and drainage system improvements in Baja Street target area and designates the City

Administrator as the City’s authorized signatory. Dave McCorquodale seconded the motion.

Discussion: Rebecca Huss asked if they needed to specifically designate Mr. Yates as the

authorized signatory, Mr, Yates advised that was in the Resolution.

The motion carried unanimously. (5-0)

Consideration and possible action on adoption of a Citizen Participation Plan and Citizen

Complaint Procedures to be followed during implementation of Texas Community

Development Block Grant Program projects.

Mr. Yates advised that this is a requirement of the CDBG grant application process. Mr. Yates
said that the plan covers how complaints are handled, and that the City will assist groups that
might want to develop other proposals for CDBG grants, public hearing provisions and how

the public i1s notified of the process after a grant is received. Mr. Yates stated this was boiler

plate language,

Rebecca Huss moved to adopt a Citizen Participation Plan and Citizen Complaint Procedures
to be followed during implementation of Texas Community Development Block Grant
Program projects as presented. Dave McCorquodale seconded the motion, the motion carried

unanimously, (5-0)

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any of the items listed specifically under this heading or

for any items listed above in executive closed session as permitted by law including if they meet the

qualifications in Sections 551.071(consultation with attorney), 551.072 (deliberation regarding real

property), 551.073 (deliberation regarding gifts), 551.074 (personnel matters), 551.076 (deliberation

regarding security devices), and 551.087 (deliberation regarding economic development negotiations)

of Chapter 551 of the Government Code of the State of Texas. (No items at this time,)

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 22



COUNCIL INQUIRY:

Pursuant to Texas Government Code Sect. 551.042 the Mayor and Council Members may inquire about

a subject not specifically listed on this Agenda. Responses are limited to recitation of existing policy

or a statement of specific factual information given in response to the inquiry. Any deliberation or

decision shall be limited to a proposal to place on the agenda of a future meeting.

Rebecca Huss stated that she was wondering if either January or February, might be a good time to get
a status of financial update on the parks and the status of their arrangements with the City. Rebecca
Huss said that two or three of the parks have agreements signed with the City, but Cedar Brake Park is
still outstanding, Rebecca Huss said that City Council had discussed getting something every six
months. Jon Bickford said if the truth be told, it was every quarter. Rebecca Huss said that now might

be the time to get the information. Rebecca Huss said that she would rather have semi-annual reports

form the parks.

Jon Bickford asked that City Council request to be apprised of funding allocations from the
corporations, such as the 501(3)(c)’s, which are the park mentors, that are collecting donations, taking

tips and accepting money out of drop boxes, as to where those funds are going, very specifically.

ADJOURNMENT

Jon Bickford moved adjourn the meeting at 7:35p.m. T.J. Wilkerson seconded the motion, the motion

carried unammously (5-0)

Submitted 24 e’l / Date Approved: ﬂ///O/c-Z&/7

Susan Hensley, Clty ect tal

 ,. Ky T

Mayor Kirk Jones

12/13/16 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 23




